
Minutes 3/15/04

1. Call to order by Mayor Richard Caldwell.

2. Executive Session. No activity.

3. No actions to be taken from Executive Session

4. Minutes of February 16, 2004, discussed. Motion by Councilman McMillen to
accept the Minutes, seconded by Councilmember Vineyard. Minutes
approved by Council.

5. Treasurer’s report; discussion of payment of building codes references
renewal. Motion to accept by MS, second by av. Treasurer’s Report approved
by Council.

6. Speakers:
Speaker: Chuck Pulvino. Discussion of calls to fire dept. concerning requests to
burn in the city. Fire dept will respond to requests to be present if someone is
granted a variance to the burn order. Requested a letter from city that person
has a variance to burn order. Mayor Caldwell said city would put a city seal on a
letter to fire dept. in the event any variances permitted and will contact fire dept.
A condition of any variances granted will be that fire department is on scene.

Speaker: Mary Price requested a variance to the burn ordinance. The presence
of partially buried debris from the old town square creates difficulty in cleaning
the property because of layers of grass over the debris. Discussion by Mike
Shea of whether granting the variance will create a future problem with other
citizens. Council approved granting Ms. Price two days variance to the burn
ordinance to clean her property. Motion to accept by Ms, seconded by av.
Council approved.

Speaker: Christy Schell. Read statement concerning her opposition to the
petition to disincorporate the city. Spoke on consequences of dissolution of the
city. Comments pro and con concerning disincorporation.

7. Old business. Discussion of Food Service Inspection Department tabled until
communication received on proposed fee schedule and penalty per day
amount. Motion by av, seconded by dm.

8. New Business:
Call for a public hearing to annex Refro proposed development into city. Motion
by ms, av seconded. Motion approved. Discussion by Mr. Renfro on his
opposition to disincorporation and development consequences. Set Public
Hearing for next council meeting April 12.



Mayor Caldwell noted that applications for the HOME Grant will be at City Hall on
March 25, and requested that the Council assist in publicizing the HOME Grant.

9. Councilmember Vineyard made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by
Councilmember McMillen.



CITY OF NEVADA

MINUTES APRIL 19, 2004

1. Mayor Richard Caldwell called to open Public Hearing One in reference to
a request by Paul Renfro to annex property on FM 6. Paul Renfro stated
that there would be 42 homes and also one commercial lot. Use for the
commercial lot has not been determined. Public Hearing One closed at
7:15 P.M.

2. Council meeting called to order at 7:15 by Richard Caldwell. Council
Members in attendance were: Daniel McMillen, Mike Shea, and Linda
White.

3. Executive Session. No activity.

4. No actions to be taken from Executive Session

5. Approval of Minutes of March 15, 2004, discussed. Mike Shea made a
motion to approve the Minutes of March 15, 2004, seconded by Daniel
McMillen seconded; Minutes approved. Minutes of April 5, 2004,
discussed. Question on Ms. Barylski from Daniel McMillen, response by
Richard Caldwell. Motion to approve Minutes of April 5, 2004, by Mike
Shea, seconded by Daniel McMillen. Minutes approved.

6. Treasurer’s report discussed. Mike Shea reviewed line item on
Treasurer’s report concerning rock purchased. Daniel McMillen wanted to
see receipt for bill paid to county. Discussion of where rock was placed
and what was to be graded and oiled. Copy of paid bill reviewed. Motion
to accept Treasurer’s Report by Mike Shea, seconded by Linda White.
Treasurer’s Report approved.

6. Speakers:
Richard Johnson, submitted a letter requesting a one-time variance to the
Burn Ordinance. Mr. Johnson granted a five (5) day variance to the Burn
Ordinance subject to the condition that the Nevada Fire Department be on
site every time he burns debris. Letter to be presented to the Nevada Fire
Department prior to scheduling of burn days. Motion to approve by Daniel
McMillen, seconded by Mike Shea. One-time variance approved.

Ruby Caldwell spoke on two requests; one was Meet the Candidates night
and the second on a change to the format of this meeting. Decided that
the Meet the Candidates night would allow each candidate two minutes to
make a statement and then the meeting would be open to questions from
the audience. The candidates will be limited to a two minute response to



a question. The meeting will be April 27, 2004, at 7:00 P.M., at Nevada
City Hall.

7. New Business:
Schedule Clean-Up day. Scheduled for May 15, from 7 A.M. to 5 P.M.
Jeanne will call Barnes to arrange for date and containers.

8. Motion to adjourn by Linda White, seconded by Mike Shea. Motion
carried to adjourn.

9. Public Hearing Two opened. Discussion of proposed development and
annexation. Meeting to approve annexation will be Thursday, April 22,
2004 at 8:00 P.M. Public Hearing Two closed.



Page 1 of 2

CITY OF NEVADA

MINUTES APRIL 19, 2004

1. Mayor Richard Caldwell called to open Public Hearing One in reference to
a request by Paul Renfro to annex property on FM 6. Paul Renfro stated
that there would be 42 homes and also one commercial lot. Use for the
commercial lot has not been determined. Public Hearing One closed at
7:15 P.M.

2. Council meeting called to order at 7:15 by Richard Caldwell. Council
Members in attendance were: Daniel McMillen, Mike Shea, and Linda
White.

3. Executive Session. No activity.

4. No actions to be taken from Executive Session

5. Approval of Minutes of March 15, 2004, discussed. Mike Shea made a
motion to approve the Minutes of March 15, 2004, seconded by Daniel
McMillen seconded; Minutes approved. Minutes of April 5, 2004,
discussed. Question on Ms. Barylski from Daniel McMillen, response by
Richard Caldwell. Motion to approve Minutes of April 5, 2004, by Mike
Shea, seconded by Daniel McMillen. Minutes approved.

6. Treasurer’s report discussed. Mike Shea reviewed line item on
Treasurer’s report concerning rock purchased. Daniel McMillen wanted to
see receipt for bill paid to county. Discussion of where rock was placed
and what was to be graded and oiled. Copy of paid bill reviewed. Motion
to accept Treasurer’s Report by Mike Shea, seconded by Linda White.
Treasurer’s Report approved.

7. Speakers:
Richard Johnson submitted a letter requesting a one-time variance to the
Burn Ordinance. Mr. Johnson granted a five (5) day variance to the Burn
Ordinance subject to the condition that the Nevada Fire Department be on
site every time he burns debris. Letter to be presented to the Nevada Fire
Department prior to scheduling of burn days. Motion to approve by Daniel
McMillen, seconded by Mike Shea. One-time variance approved.

Ruby Caldwell spoke on two requests; one was Meet the Candidates night
and the second on a change to the format of this meeting. Decided that
the Meet the Candidates night would allow each candidate two minutes to
make a statement and then the meeting would be open to questions from
the audience. The candidates will be limited to a two minute response to



Page 2 of 2

a question. The meeting will be Tuesday, April 27, 2004, at 7:00 P.M., at
Nevada City Hall.

8. New Business:
Schedule Clean-Up day. Scheduled for May 15, from 7 A.M. to 5 P.M.
Jeanne will call Barnes to arrange for date and containers.

9. Motion to adjourn by Linda White, seconded by Mike Shea. Motion
carried to adjourn.

10. Public Hearing Two opened in reference to a request from Paul Renfro for
annexation of property on west FM 6. Discussion of proposed
development and annexation. Meeting to approve annexation will be
Thursday, April 22, 2004, at 8:00 P.M. Public Hearing Two closed.



Page 1 of 2

CITY OF NEVADA

ELECTION RECOUNT

MINUTES MAY 24, 2004

1. Parties present for the Recount:

The two former candidates requesting the Recount, Daniel McMillen, Write-In-
Candidate for Mayor and Lanora Page, Council Member candidate, and Janet
McMillen, representative for Daniel McMillen.

The Recount Committee consisting of Nevada citizens, Phillip Barth, Marla
Barth, and Joe Poovey.

Also, present were Mayor Richard Caldwell, Jeanne Davis, Elections
Administrator and Custodian of Election Records, Christy Schell, Council
Member, Wayne Drummonds, Council Member, Torrye Vineyard, Presiding
Election Judge, Christopher Bardrick, former candidate for Council Member,
Linda White, former candidate for Council Member, and numerous citizens of
Nevada and a Collin County Sheriff’s Department Deputy.

2. It was noted prior to the beginning of the Recount, that the former
candidates requesting the Recount must deposit an additional $100 cashier’s
check for the Recount. This was not done. The Recount proceeded with the
notation that an additional $100 deposit was required from the candidates
requesting the Recount. The $100 cashier’s check on deposit with the City of
Nevada was from Lanora Page. Therefore, the additional $100 cashier’s
check necessary to conduct the Recount was requested from former
candidate Daniel McMillen.

3. Mayor Richard Caldwell called the meeting to order and turned the
conduct of the Recount over to Jeanne Davis, Elections Administrator and
Custodian of Election Records.

3. The ballot boxes were unlocked and opened in the presence of all parties.
Daniel McMillen maintained the seals had been tampered with. Jeanne
Davis, Custodian of Election Records, noted that the ballot boxes had been in
the continual custody of the Collin County Sheriff’s Department and the Collin
County Elections Administration until the day of the Recount and that the
seals were not broken. The election materials were removed from the ballot
boxes in the presence of all parties and reviewed by Daniel McMillen, Lanora
Page, and the Recount Committee. Several notations were made on the
voting register by the persons requesting the Recount which questioned
whether some addresses of persons on the voter registration list were in the



Page 2 of 2

City of Nevada. None of the persons whose addresses were questioned
voted in the Election so therefore, the question of whether the addresses
were actually in the City had no effect on the Election outcome.

4. The voted ballots were counted and the voted ballots tallied with the voting
register. The unused ballots were counted and all were accounted for. The
voted ballots, unvoted ballots, conditional ballot, and spoiled ballots tallied
with the number of total ballots and all ballots were accounted for.

5. The Recount Committee commenced the Recount of voted ballots. Phillip
Barth read the ballots and Marla Barth and Joe Poovey tallied the results
on the Tally Sheets provided for the Recount. Daniel McMillen stood in
front of Phillip Barth for the reading of the majority of the ballots. None
were contested by Daniel McMillen or Lanora Page. The Tally sheet totals
were confirmed by all members of the Recount Committee several times
during the Recount. The final result of the Recount was identical to the
Election results.

6. Daniel McMillen noted that he would contest the Election.

7. The meeting was closed.

8. After the conclusion of the Recount, the City Secretary asked Daniel
McMillen to send or bring the additional $100 cashier’s check due for the
Recount on the following day. Mr. McMillen refused. The City Secretary
informed him that if he did not pay the necessary amount, a lien would be
placed on his property by the City of Nevada.



Page 1 of 2

CITY OF NEVADA

MINUTES MAY 25, 2004

1. Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Richard Caldwell at 7:00
P.M. Council Members present were Andy Vineyard, Christy Schell, Dennis
Morrow, Wayne Drummonds.

2. Oath of Office was administered for the new Mayor Richard Caldwell and
new Council Members, Christy Schell and Wayne Drummonds.

3. Executive Session. No activity.

4. No actions to be taken from Executive Session

5. Approval of Minutes of May 10, 2004, and May 24, 2004. Motion to
approve the Minutes of May 10 and May 24, 2004, by Wayne Drummonds,
seconded by Andy Vineyard; Minutes approved.

6. The Mayor noted that there was no Treasurer’s Report since the meeting
was prior to the end of the month.

7. New Business

a. Discussion of the request for a streetlight by Mrs. Simmons for 118
West Street. Motion by Dennis Morrow to approve the streetlight,
seconded and Motion approved by Council.

b. Swimming Pool Ordinance
New ordinance requiring a permit and inspections for all swimming pools
over 500 gallons and requiring fencing around a pool. The permit fee will
be $300. The new ordinance was recommended for acceptance by a
Motion by Wayne Drummonds, seconded by Andy Vineyard, Motion
approved by the Council.

c. The next item of business was the election of the Mayor Pro Tem.
Andy Vineyard nominated Christy Schell, seconded by Wayne
Drummonds, Motion approved by the Council.

d. The appointment of a representative for the Council to Community
ISD was the next item. Christy Schell nominated, and made a Motion to
appoint, Wayne Drummonds; the Motion was seconded by Andy Vineyard,
Motion was approved by the Council.

e. Appointment of an official newspaper. The Royse City Herald
Banner was discussed as the regional newspaper that reports on Nevada.



Page 2 of 2

Andy Vineyard made a Motion to appoint the Royse City Herald Banner,
the Motion was seconded by Wayne Drummonds; the Motion carried.

f. Appointment of an official Bank. Andy Vineyard made the Motion to
retain Farmersville Bank in Lavon as the official Bank for Nevada, the
Motion was seconded by Wayne Drummonds; the Motion was approved
by the Council.

g. Discussion of roadwork was the last item on the Agenda. Mayor
Caldwell stated the roads were scheduled to be oiled and graded the
current week and that he had asked the County to put $4,000 in rock on
Kerens Street as approved. The County representative, David Doan,
stated to the Mayor that if the rock was put on the road at the current time,
the oil would not do any good because the rock needs to be packed in.
The County representative also said that the County planned to chip-seal
Kerens Street in thirty to sixty days and the road would have to be re-
oiled. The County representative did not recommend that rock be spread
on Kerens Street at present and he thought the base was fine. The Mayor
noted that the work on Kerens Street was still not scheduled to be done
until 2005 but the County said it would be done while work on another
road in the area was done.

h. The last item on the Agenda was discussion of the variances
granted to the Burn Ordinance. The Mayor stated that since the Fire Chief
was not on site for several instances of burning, that the Council probably
should not grant variances without serious consideration. Discussion by
Christy Schell, Andy Vineyard, Mike Shea concerning variances to the
Burn Ordinance. Comments by Fire Chief Pulvino concerning burning in
the City.

9. Motion to adjourn by Wayne Drummonds, seconded by Andy Vineyard.
Motion carried to adjourn.



Page 1 of 2

CITY OF NEVADA

ELECTION RECOUNT

MINUTES MAY 31, 2004

1. Parties present for the Recount:

The two former candidates requesting the Recount, Daniel McMillen, Write-In-
Candidate for Mayor and Lanora Page, Council Member candidate, and Janet
McMillen, representative for Daniel McMillen.

The Recount Committee consisting of Nevada citizens, Phillip Barth, Marla
Barth, and Joe Poovey.

Also, present were Mayor Richard Caldwell, Jeanne Davis, Elections
Administrator and Custodian of Election Records, Christy Schell, Council
Member, Wayne Drummonds, Council Member, Torrye Vineyard, Presiding
Election Judge, Christopher Bardrick, former candidate for Council Member,
Linda White, former candidate for Council Member, and numerous citizens of
Nevada and a Collin County Sheriff’s Department Deputy.

2. It was noted prior to the beginning of the Recount, that the former
candidates requesting the Recount must deposit an additional $100 cashier’s
check for the Recount. This was not done. The Recount proceeded with the
notation that an additional $100 deposit was required from the candidates
requesting the Recount. The $100 cashier’s check on deposit with the City of
Nevada was from Lanora Page. Therefore, the additional $100 cashier’s
check necessary to conduct the Recount was requested from former
candidate Daniel McMillen.

3. Mayor Richard Caldwell called the meeting to order and turned the
conduct of the Recount over to Jeanne Davis, Elections Administrator and
Custodian of Election Records.

3. The ballot boxes were unlocked and opened in the presence of all parties.
Daniel McMillen maintained the seals had been tampered with. Jeanne
Davis, Custodian of Election Records, noted that the ballot boxes had been in
the continual custody of the Collin County Sheriff’s Department and the Collin
County Elections Administration until the day of the Recount and that the
seals were not broken. The election materials were removed from the ballot
boxes in the presence of all parties and reviewed by Daniel McMillen, Lanora
Page, and the Recount Committee. Several notations were made on the
voting register by the persons requesting the Recount which questioned
whether some addresses of persons on the voter registration list were in the



Page 2 of 2

City of Nevada. None of the persons whose addresses were questioned
voted in the Election so therefore, the question of whether the addresses
were actually in the City had no effect on the Election outcome.

4. The voted ballots were counted and the voted ballots tallied with the voting
register. The unused ballots were counted and all were accounted for. The
voted ballots, unvoted ballots, conditional ballot, and spoiled ballots tallied
with the number of total ballots and all ballots were accounted for.

5. The Recount Committee commenced the Recount of voted ballots. Phillip
Barth read the ballots and Marla Barth and Joe Poovey tallied the results
on the Tally Sheets provided for the Recount. Daniel McMillen stood in
front of Phillip Barth for the reading of the majority of the ballots. None
were contested by Daniel McMillen or Lanora Page. The Tally sheet totals
were confirmed by all members of the Recount Committee several times
during the Recount. The final result of the Recount was identical to the
Election results.

6. Daniel McMillen noted that he would contest the Election.

7. The meeting was closed.

8. After the conclusion of the Recount, the City Secretary asked Daniel
McMillen to send or bring the additional $100 cashier’s check due for the
Recount on the following day. Mr. McMillen refused. The City Secretary
informed him that if he did not pay the necessary amount, a lien would be
placed on his property by the City of Nevada.



Page 1 of 5

CITY OF NEVADA
CITY COUNCIL

MINUTES JULY 6, 2004

1. Call to Order
Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Richard Caldwell at 7:00 P.M.
Council Members present were Dennis Morrow, Mike Shea, Andy Vineyard,
Christy Schell, Wayne Drummonds

2. Recess Council Meeting and Open Public Hearing
Public Hearings for four properties on condemnation list: 129 and 131 S. FM
1138, property of Larry Jeffreys, 306 S. FM 1138, property of Benny Riley,
and 390 West Street, property of Roy Brown. Mayor Caldwell asked the
audience if there was any discussion on any of these properties. There was
no discussion on the properties.

3. Close Public Hearings/Reconvene Council Meeting
Mayor Caldwell declared the Public Hearings closed and called the Council
Meeting to order.

4. Citizens to Speak Before the Council
a. Curt Houseworth

Mr. Houseworth discussed the sign in front of his house and asked if it
would be ‘grandfathered’ in regard to the sign ordinance. Christy
Schell asked Mr. Houseworth if his wife had told him that she came
into City Hall when Christy was City Secretary and had said that the
they were selling their house and the sign would come down when
they moved. Ms. Schell also said she had told Mrs. Houseworth not to
worry about it, that since they were moving, the city would let it go.
Christy Schell also said that she guessed they weren’t moving now.
Mayor Caldwell also stated that the city had let it go but since that time
someone had come in and wanted a sign and was denied and that the
person had asked about why Mr. Houseworth’s sign was there.
Christy Schell said that the sign violated the Ordinance. Wayne
Drummonds (I think; can’t hear) asked if Mr. Houseworth ran his
business out of his house. Mr. Houseworth noted that he had come
into City Hall and read the Ordinance and it said that a 2’ x 2’ sign was
permissible and could he do that. Christy Schell replied that if he was
good with that it was fine and just don’t throw his sign away because
when it became Commercial he could use it although it might be to big.
Mr. Houseworth said that he would use the 2’ x 2’ sign.

8. New Business
a. Memo from Trent Petty

Mayor Caldwell asked if he (meaning developer Morton) had signed a
written request to be annexed. The City Secretary and the City



Page 2 of 5

Treasurer replied that they had looked for information on a request and
could not find any record of a request being submitted or acted on by
the Council. Christy Schell said that Morton had submitted a request
and she thought it was in October or November (2003). Mayor
Caldwell asked that Morton resubmit his request for annexation.
Christy Schell said that she had talked to Morton today (July 6).

b. Nevadafest
Mayor Caldwell opened discussion on whether to have Nevadafest for
a September event and stated that a lot of ladies were interested and a
lot of people wanted Nevadafest to come back. Wayne Drummond
stated that a possible date was September 24th in the Community
School parking lot and said that a list had been obtained from Wolfe
City of all the Vendors that had been used for their Funfest and noted
that they were hoping to raise in excess of $1,000, to be used. Wayne
Drummonds also said the theme would be beautification of Nevada
and they wanted to get as many citizens as possible involved and raise
as much money as they can to buy plants and trees, paint and
whatever the City of Nevada needs. Wayne Drummonds continued by
adding that he did not think there would be any problem getting four or
five food vendors and several craft booths and advertise in the local
papers. He added that this event would be strictly by the citizens of
Nevada and wouldn’t cost the city anything, won’t cost our taxpayers
and it is a way to get our community together. He concluded by saying
that we should start doing something like this every year to get the
community together and that three ladies are willing to take the lead in
dealing with vendors and things like that and he thought it was a great
idea. Mayor Caldwell asked if there were any problems with
Nevadafest and did anyone have anything they were opposed to. Mr.
Drummonds said that the date would have to be coordinated with
Community Schools but he did not think there would be any problem
and he would like to coordinate with the Youth Association to see if
they wanted to do a fish fry at the same time and talk to the Boy
Scouts about having a booth and get people involved. Mayor Caldwell
mentioned that we should contact the Football Association and find out
if the date will coordinate with a home game so that people will be here
to attend. Mr. Drummonds said the date was not in stone and could be
changed. Mayor Caldwell suggested that the city move forward with
Nevadafest and if there was no more discussion, he would close the
subject.

c. Amendment to Ordinance 02-010, Fence Regulations
Mayor Caldwell opened discussion on the amendment. Christy Schell
wanted the wording to be changed to zoned Single Family or
Commercial. She noted that on FM 1138 and FM 6 there were
locations where there were horses and cattle and the property had
barbed wire fencing and the way the Ordinance was written, property
owners would be required to take those down. Wayne Drummonds



Page 3 of 5

stated that if it was zoned Ag (Agricultural) then it would not apply.
Mayor Caldwell said that if it was zoned Residential it would meet the
requirements. Mayor Caldwell asked if the zoning at Christy Schell’s
house had been changed to Residential. Wayne Drummonds said to
change to note that Agricultural zoning would not be subject to the
amendment. Wayne Dummonds made a Motion to approve the
amendment with the addition of wording to exempt Agricultural zoning,
Andy Vineyard seconded the Motion; the Motion carried.

d. Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance for Specific Use zoning
Mayor Caldwell said this amendment had been talked about the Day
Care Center and wanted to be able to give people such as the Day
Care Center so they could add to their business since this property will
be zoned Commercial eventually. Christy Schell said she would rather
see the area zoned Commercial to FM 1138; she asked if the Council
didn’t do anything would it hold up the project. Mayor Caldwell replied
yes. City Treasurer Janey Mobley explained the proposed amendment
to the zoning ordinance. Christy Schell made a motion to accept the
Ordinance as written. Janey Mobley noted that a Public Hearing was
required. Mayor Caldwell asked when the Notice of Public Hearing
could be in the newspaper. Mayor Caldwell said the Public Hearing
would be for the next scheduled meeting in August.

e. Second Phone Line/new Phone purchase/Copier Fax for City Hall
Mayor Caldwell opened discussion on purchase of the second line and
a phone with two lines. Christy Schell asked why a new phone was
needed; Mayor Caldwell said so that one line was for fax and internet
and one for the office. Wayne Drummond discussed roll-over lines.
Janey Mobley noted that an amendment to the budget would be
required. Mayor Caldwell said the second phone line could be
approved and the copier/fax could be tabled. Discussion was tabled
until October.

f. Freeze on City Taxes for Citizens 65 years of age and older
Christy Schell explained the proposed Ordinance that changed the
amount of exemption to $10,000. Wayne Drummonds made a Motion
to approve, Motion seconded by Andy Vineyard; Motion carried.

g. City Hall Access
Mayor Caldwell opened discussion by stating that one Council Member
wanted access to City Hall office and wants keys to every door. Mayor
Caldwell said that in his opinion no one needed keys to the office
except himself, Ms. Davis, Ms. Mobley, and Wes Caperton. Mayor
Caldwell noted that in an emergency Janey was close and so was
Jeanne. Mr. Vineyard, and Ms. Schell noted that they did not think
anyone other than stated by the Mayor needed keys to the office.

h. Change Meeting Date to 2nd Tuesday
Reasons that the City Secretary requested the change were that she
did not receive all of the information and reports that were a part of the
Agenda until the end of the month and that she was trying to get the



Page 4 of 5

Agenda packets out a week ahead of the Council Meetings so that
Council would have adequate review time. Several on the Council had
conflicts with a second Tuesday meeting and it was decided to leave
the date the first Tuesday of the month with the understanding that the
Agenda packets would not always be out a week ahead. Christy
Schell stated that a cut-off date should be established for items on the
Agenda and nothing should be added after that.

i. Placement of protective barrier at intersection of East Street and CR
592
Mayor Caldwell explained the problem of vehicles running over the
culvert and collapsing the culvert creating a situation that causes water
to back up. Christy Schell said she could not find the culvert and she
did not want to put metal poles in someone’s pasture. Mayor Caldwell
said that every time it rains there will be a problem. Andy Vineyard (I
think; can’t hear) said why not put a concreted culvert in that would not
collapse. The amount in the budget available was questioned; Wayne
Dummonds said there was $800 in the budget. Discussion was tabled.

9. Old Business
a. Kerens Street paving

Mayor Caldwell updated the schedule for paving and said that the
County said Kerens would be done as soon as the County finished CR
900 and due to the rain they were behind. He concluded that he
hoped this paving would be done this summer and we were still at the
mercy of the County.

b. Justin Epker with Grantworks
Mr. Epker was not present and this item will be rescheduled

10.Reports
a. Wayne Dummonds, Community ISD discussed his meeting with Bud

Nauykous and reviewed the anticipated growth in our Community. He
cited numbers of projects to be built and what the projected numbers
for the schools would be in 2007 and 2008. He discussed the need for
land donation for schools. Mayor Caldwell asked that the City
Secretary make Trent Petty aware of the projected numbers for the
schools.

b. Code Inspector; new Court Clerk. Christy Schell proposed Sue
Johnson from Lavon. Christy Schell made a Motion to accept Ms.
Johnson; Mike Shea asked if the Council needed to see a Resume for
Ms. Johnson and do we go through any process; Wayne Drummonds
seconded the Motion; Motion carries

c. Treasurer’s Report by City Treasurer, Janey Mobley. Ms. Mobley
reviewed the May and June Treasurer’s reports. Mike Shea asked if
the city ended up spending $149 on the clean-up and Ms. Mobley said
the money was spent for food for the Clean-up day. Mike Shea asked
about the $869 for locks without voting on it because someone decided



Page 5 of 5

the locks needed to be changed and he was not sure that was the right
way to do that. Janey Mobley said that because of the events of
election night that the safety of city employees was necessary and the
purchase of the locks was an emergency so no one could get in City
Hall late at night and use the equipment to send pictures and emails
could be prevented. She also noted that the insurance company would
not approve of all the keys that were out to City Hall. She also noted
that the city employees was important. Mr. Shea asked why we did not
take bids and possibly use a local company. Christy Schell noted that
she had a problem using a local company. Janey Mobley noted the
unexpected amount that came in on sales tax. Mike Shea asked why
the electric bill was $11 in May and $175 in June. Janey Mobley said
she had paid the May bill twice so their was a $.42 credit on the June
bill. Mike Shea asked about the ambulance bill. Janey Mobley
explained the payments. Christy Schell noted that the amount of the
deposit for the recount was $100 and the amount paid out was $150
and that the people requesting the recount had to pay the additional
$100 because she was not having her friends and neighbors pay for
that.

d. City Secretary’s Report. City Secretary mentioned email accounts;
asked for comments on new Agenda form. Discussed the Planning
Meeting in McKinney; and thanked Joe Poovey, Wayne Drummonds,
and Richard Caldwell for the work on the new table.

11.Consent Agenda
a. Minutes

Removed from Consent Agenda. Mike Shea asked about the Minutes
of May 31. Mike Shea asked if the Recount Meeting was posted;
Mayor Caldwell stated they were posted. Discussion concerning the
requirements of the Recount meeting and the persons present. Mike
Shea asked to be notified of meetings. Christy Schell made a Motion
to accept the Minutes of May 25, 2004; Mr. Drummonds seconded;
Motion carried.

b. Treasurer’s Report
Christy Schell made a Motion to accept the May and June Treasurer’s
Report; Mr. Drummonds seconded; Motion carried.

12.Executive Session – None

13.Reconvene Council Meeting – not needed this meeting

14.Adjournment
Motion to adjourn by Wayne Drummonds; Andy Vineyard seconded;
Motion carried.



City of Nevada

Special Meeting

Minutes August 16, 2004

Council Members Present: Wayne Drummonds, Christy Schell, Mike Shea, Andy
Vineyard

1. Call to Order
Mayor Caldwell called the Meeting to order.

2. New Business
a. The first item on the Agenda was the city sales tax increase. The Mayor

stated that the city is proposing to raise city sales taxes for roads by a
quarter percent. Ms. Schell clarified that the matter must be voted upon.
The Mayor continued by explaining that the purpose of the meeting was
for the Council to decide if they wanted to put the increase up to the
public for a vote on whether to raise sales taxes. The city’s sales tax
would be raised a quarter percent for roads and that would be strictly for
road development and road use. The other one (economic development)
we have the opportunity to raise it a quarter or a half percent. In the
ordinance it says a quarter. We (city) can raise it a half for economic
development and that (tax income) would be able to be used for several
things such as parks and recreation, or other things within certain
guidelines. Basically all we are doing tonight is deciding if we want to
continue on with this. If we do we have two ordinances we could pass
that call for an election November 2. If we decide to do that, we call for
an election and we have a step-by-step procedure we have to follow. We
have to turn it in to the state or government. The city treasurer provided
information on what the letter from the attorney consulted by the city
required be done to get the subject on the election ballot. Mike Shea
reviewed the information of the Mayor and city treasurer. He summarized
by stating the city was talking about raising the sales tax by three-quarter
percent and the income was to be used in two specific areas. He
discussed the ability to free up the dollars in the current budget from the
current one percent. The Mayor replied yes. Wayne Drummonds spoke
on the need for a road fund because of the growth. He stated ‘Every
other city has it and we don’t and that’s why we have to keep postponing
fixing all these roads because we just don’t have the money to do it.’ He
concluded his remarks by stating that the purpose was to give the citizens
the chance to vote on this. Mike Shea estimated that the projected
increase in net revenue for the roads would be $3,260 per year. The
Mayor pointed out that this amount was approximately the amount for



one oiling. The Mayor and Mr. Shea discussed the need and scheduling of
grading the roads. Mike Shea asked what brought this up today that
we’ve got to have a special election? The Mayor said we’ve been talking
about this for a while about raising the sales tax and we just never knew
how to go about it or how to do it so I asked Janey to talk to the
attorneys and ask them to give us a step by step procedure. When we
did that we found out we had to get on the ball to get it on the November
election. Mike Shea said or else we could wait until the regular next City
Council election and do it for free. Wayne Drummonds said that would be
the following November though. Mike Shea said if we wait till the next
City election when we’re already hiring a Judge and Election Clerk
anyway. He also discussed the potential lost six months revenue, $1,500
– 1,600, if the city waited until the next city election. Wayne Drummonds
talked about the November presidential election being a good turnout.
Mike Shea pointed out that citizens would have to go to a different room
to vote on this as opposed to voting for President. Ms. Schell said we
spent about $500 on our election. Wayne Drummonds said if we approve
just bringing it to the citizens and if it gets approved I don’t believe it
should be instead of money we are spending it should be in addition to,
what we are already using for the roads. We are falling short on roads.
The Mayor commented that ‘Costs are going up and either we are going
to keep up with the costs of grading and oiling or just go further and
further in debt. And at least this would cover some of the rising costs.’
Mike Shea said that the good part is that some of the people driving
through the city will be paying for some of the roads they are driving on
rather that us having to foot the whole bill. Wayne Drummonds added
‘And the people buying the new homes.’ The city treasurer commented
on the people using the roads that are living in Nevada and the Mayor
commented on farmers living right outside the city limits and that they are
some of the ones tearing up the roads the worst. Wayne Drummonds
said that he thought that this should come up for a vote and if we don’t
start going forward we are going to start falling behind. And in his
opinion a road fund should have been established years and years ago
anyway and we need to get caught up to where we need to be. Mike
Shea asked if we are sophisticated enough to track it and keep it separate
from this council and the next council and do it correctly and asked if we
are capable of doing that. Ms. Schell commented she thought the city was
required to keep it separate. Ms. Schell asked if she could do both in one
Motion. Mike Shea asked whether it was decided a quarter or a half on
economic development. The Mayor said he thought one-half; Mike Shea
asked the city treasurer what she recommended. She replied, and Wayne
Drummonds asked whether there were any time limits about building up
the fund over say five years and then were we required to spend it in 18
months? The city treasurer replied (can’t hear). The Mayor asked to hear



a Motion to pass the ordinance to authorize an election for the road tax.
Wayne Drummonds made the Motion; seconded by Andy Vineyard. The
Motion carried.

b. The Mayor continued for the ordinance on economic development.
Christy Schell asked if they were doing .25? The city treasurer said it
could only be increased .25 at a time. Christy Schell had a question
concerning the road tax ordinance referring to maintenance and repair
and noted that it said nothing about new roads. Mayor said the money
budgeted now for roads could be used and the .25 percent for repairs.
The Mayor asked for a Motion on the second ordinance. Mike Shea asked
for clarification on what it was a quarter, one-half. The city treasurer
reviewed the possibilities and the Mayor suggested one-half.



Page 1 of 6

City of Nevada

Public Hearing and Council Meeting

Minutes August 3, 2004

1. Call to Order
Mayor Caldwell called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. Council Members present
were Dennis Morrow, Mike Shea, Christy Schell, and Wayne Drummonds.

2. Recess Council Meeting and Open Public Hearing
First item on the Agenda was the Public Hearing to amend the zoning ordinance.
The Mayor asked if there was any discussion from the audience pertaining to the
amendment. Mike Shea asked the Mayor to explain why the amendment is needed.
The Mayor explained that the Day Care Center wants to add on to their facility and
they cannot at present because they are in Residential zoning and can’t add on
because they are not in Commercial zoning. In order for the Day Care Center to
add on to their facility, the city needs to amend the zoning ordinance to permit
Specific Use permitting. The proposed amendment will allow the city to grant a
Specific Use permit for them to add to the Day Care Center and also allow other
projects in the future that would require Specific Use permitting. The Mayor noted
that it is expected that in the future FM 6 will be Commercial zoning and therefore it
is acceptable to grant the Specific Use permit to the Day Care Center. Mike Shea
asked if the current ordinance prohibits such permits. The Mayor replied that the
current zoning ordinance prohibits the city from granting such permits. Mike Shea
asked if the proposed amendment to the ordinance takes away anything or changes
any zoning boundaries or only adds to the existing ordinance. Mayor Caldwell
responded that it did not change anything and gave the city more authority to look
at certain situations and if the city decided it would be best for the city and best for
the individual, the city could grant a Specific Use permit. The Mayor explained to a
citizen who asked about the amendment procedure, that the Specific Use process
would be on a case by case basis before the City Council. Wayne Drummonds noted
that this amendment was being put in place prior to the Comprehensive Master Plan
so that the Day Care Center could proceed with an addition. Mayor Caldwell noted
that anyone has the right to come before Council and ask for a Specific Use permit
but it doesn’t mean all will be granted. The Mayor asked if there was anymore
discussion on the subject; there was none.

3. Close Public Hearing/Reconvene Council Meeting
The Mayor declared the Public Hearing closed and reconvened the Council Meeting.

4. Citizens to Speak Before the Council
Next item on the Agenda was Speaker, Andy Russell, who was not in attendance.



Page 2 of 6

5. New Business
a. The Mayor moved to the first item of new Business. First was an Amendment to

Ordinance 01-07, to approve a Development Fee Schedule. Christy Schell noted
an error in that the city is a Type A city and the ordinance says Type B. Ms.
Schell also asked if this amendment added Property Maintenance, and said that
she didn’t want to start enforcing the ordinance for houses that weren’t painted
until Grantworks houses are finished. Wayne Drummonds added that a lot of
citizens were on fixed incomes and could not afford to paint and before the city
started enforcing, the city needed to come up with a plan where the city assists
them like every other city in the world; where the city supplies them with the
paint or something like that. He added there are a lot of families out there who
just cannot afford it (paint). Mr. Drummonds continued that after Nevadafest if
enough money were raised for a fund then he would not have a problem with
Wes giving a citation for not painting; and the city goes out and assists them.
The Mayor asked if Council wanted to go ahead and pass the ordinance and just
hold off on it (enforcement). Mike Shea asked which ordinance was being
looked at; the one he was looking at was not talking about painting. Wayne
Drummonds said the Council was looking at 04-09. The City Treasurer noted
that the first two items were combined with an arrow. The City Secretary
informed Mr. Shea that the first two items on the Agenda were added after she
had completed the packet and she believed these items were at the very back of
their packet. Mr. Shea located the correct ordinance and asked if this was the
ordinance to establish fees and said he thought that had already been done.
The Mayor said yes; this was establishing fees for Trent (Petty) and developers.
Ms. Schell said it had been done. The Mayor replied that he didn’t think the
schedule had ever been approved. Ms. Schell replied that it had been done and
noted changes the Council had requested. The city treasurer advised Ms. Schell
that if she would read the memo she had attached, it would explain what
happened. Ms. Schell said the ordinance was missing in action and the current
action was trying to fix it. Janey Mobley explained the background of her memo
and questions that had arisen; one of which had been answered during the
meeting. She noted the other question pertained to the current structure of the
ordinances and said we do not have a ‘code of ordinances’. Mike Shea noted it
was combining many ordinances. The Mayor said the Council needed to pass
the ordinance in order to adopt the fee schedule. Mike Shea asked if the
ordinance under consideration had fees that are already in place or was this a
whole new set of fees. The Mayor said some were new, such as swimming
pools. The Council discussed the proposed fees. Mike Shea stated that the
ordinance was a summary of fees and the Mayor replied this would amend all the
fees. Ms. Schell made a motion to approve with changes on page 4, and to add
Commercial construction, and to delete all the special permit fees in the
ordinance. Mike Shea seconded the motion. The Motion carried.



Page 3 of 6

b. The next item of business was discussion of the proposed ordinance to update
the Uniform Building codes to the year 2000 Uniform Codes. The 2000 Uniform
Codes include Property Maintenance codes. The City Secretary noted the cause
for the amendment to 02-03 was a request by Wes Caperton, the city code
inspector, to update the Uniform Construction Codes for the city to the year 2000
instead of the existing 1997 Uniform Code. Mike Shea asked if this was the
cause of the statement in the newsletter pertaining to ‘the city will begin
inspecting for substandard conditions such as peeling paint’. The Mayor replied
yes. Mike Shea said he was not to the point that he was ready to tell someone
they had to paint their house; that if the house was unsafe that was one thing
but if someone let their house go to pot where the paint falls off, that’s not
hurting anyone else. The Mayor disagreed and said that it hurts his property
value if someone has a house that needs painting; and if the ordinance passed,
the city could say that someone had six months to come into compliance, and
that Wes could issue warning letters and let them know they have six months to
comply. Mike Shea asked if the city wanted to selectively enforce legislation the
Council enacts? The Mayor replied no. Mr. Shea said ‘then let’s wait until we are
ready to enforce it before legislating’. The city secretary noted that the problem
was that the current ordinance was based on the 1997 Uniform Code and the
code needed to be updated to the 2000 Uniform Code. Mr. Shea asked if the
1997 Uniform Code included Property Maintenance and perhaps the ordinance
being discussed was already in the code. The Mayor said that if the ordinance
was approved Property Maintenance would be in there. Ms. Schell said you could
take out the Property Maintenance section. Mr. Drummonds said that we
needed to get a fund so we could assist them (citizens) before passing the
ordinance. Mr. Drummonds said that we should have the money in September
but right now we can’t tell them to do that; and if that one section was taken
out, he was fine with it. Mr. Drummonds made a motion to accept the ordinance
with the change of taking out the Property Maintenance code, and changing to a
Type A city. Ms. Schell seconded the Motion; the Motion carried.

c. The next item on the Agenda was discussion of approval of the Specific Use
amendment that was the subject of the Public Hearing. Mr. Shea wanted to
know if Wes had the ability to approve a Specific Use permit or did someone
(person/business making the request) have to come before the Council. The
Mayor replied no; a citizen would have to come before the Council and request a
Specific Use permit and the Council would have to approve. Janey Mobley
reviewed the proposed ordinance. Mr. Dummonds noted the ordinance also had
Type B city on it and it needed to be changed to Type A. Mike Shea made a
Motion to approve; Wayne Drummonds seconded the Motion. The Motion
carried.

d. The next item on the Agenda was the Tree Preservation ordinance. Wayne
Drummonds asked who sponsored the ordinance. Mike Shea commented on the



Page 4 of 6

five trees that were against the law; and stated this was ludricrious, and he
commented on the reforestation fund. Wayne Drummonds asked about the
source of the ordinance; the city secretary replied that she had received three
from both Trent Petty and Rockwall (city) and that she had pulled out a lot of
things to simplify the ordinance. Wayne Drummonds said the ordinance was to
complicated in his judgment; Mike Shea also commented, and the Mayor said the
ordinance would not be considered at this time.

e. The next item on the Agenda was the Landscape ordinance. Mike Shea said it
was as funny as the tree (preservation) and asked if anyone had read it. Ms.
Schell stated she had read it; Wayne Drummonds said we needed an ordinance
but this was to complicated and maybe we could look at Rockwall’s. The city
secretary said this (ordinance) was Rockwall’s. Mike Shea made additional
comments concerning the ordinance provisions. The city secretary noted that
the ordinance pertained to developers and commercial development. Wayne
Drummonds asked if we could get an ordinance that was more simple. Christy
Schell said she had one for Fate that was put in for subdivisions. Mike Shea said
the ordinance did not specify between residential and commercial. The city
secretary said she thought it exempted residential construction. Mike Shea
stated he thought the ordinance applied to existing homes already built and
being lived in. Christy Schell made a Motion to table the ordinance; Mike Shea
seconded the Motion. Motion carried.

f. The Mayor explained that the next item on the Agenda was the use of Stan
Lowry as the city’s attorney pertaining to development matters only on a month
to month basis. He stated that Trent and Wes liked him and worked well with
him. Mike Shea asked if we had a fee schedule for him; the city secretary said
yes, she believed the fee was $175 per hour for municipal affairs and $250 an
hour for court related matters. Discussion was conducted on using Mr. Lowry
full-time perhaps beginning in October and on what were the advantages of
using him. The Mayor responded that we (Council) would see if we liked him
and perhaps change in October. Christy Schell commented on the attorney who
represented our current firm at a meeting and that Trent was not happy with his
performance and had commented that we had just spent $500-600 and gotten
nothing. The city treasurer gave information on a discussion with Trent
concerning using Mr. Lowry for development related concerns only. Mr.
Drummonds made a Motion to accept Stan Lowry as the city’s development
attorney; Christy Schell seconded the Motion. The Motion carried.

g. The next item concerned the Comprehensive Master Plan; the Mayor asked if we
(city) had received a fee schedule. Jeanne Davis replied that Trent and Mark
Baker, the person recommended, would be at City Hall for a meeting Thursday
the 5th, at 11:00. Ms. Schell asked what Grantworks was supposed to do. The
Mayor said they were going to charge us $25,000 for the entire plan. Ms. Schell



Page 5 of 6

referred to the initial work of Grantworks and the Mayor replied that was $6.500.
The Mayor said everything had been put on hold until the city found out if it
could be done for less. Ms. Schell and Mr. Shea stated they thought the $6.500
had already been paid. The city treasurer replied that it had not been spent.
Wayne Drummonds asked about the Comprehensive Master Plan funding in
regard to the upcoming budget. The city treasurer reviewed the time factors
that could be applicable to the meeting on August 5.

6. Old Business
a. The Mayor moved to old business and reported that he had talked to Justin of

Grantworks and that Justin said they (Grantworks) had the people chosen that
were recommended to receive the Grant funds and that the recommendation
was ready for the Council to make a final decision. The Mayor noted that he was
supposed to receive a breakdown showing exactly where the Grant process was
and asked if that had been received. The city secretary replied that nothing had
been received from Grantworks. The Mayor said that Grantworks was supposed
to get someone out here or send a breakdown, and evidently we hadn’t received
anything. The Mayor said they (Grantworks) are ready to get started and have
inspected the houses (recommended). Mike Shea and the Mayor discussed the
recommendations for recipients and the Council’s role in the final decision of
recipients.

7. Reports
a. The City Treasurer reviewed the treasurer’s report and answered questions about

the electric bill. Christy Schell had a question on the payment shown for lien
filing. The City Secretary answered that the lien filing pertained to the Ellis
property and not the recount. Ms. Schell asked where the city is on the recount
payment and the City Secretary replied that the city has done everything
required according to the Election Code.

b. The Mayor’s report concerned the culvert needed on the corner of 591 and East
Street. He said that the culvert needs to be fixed. Ms. Schell said she thought
we couldn’t do it without amending the budget. Mr. Shea noted that it was
discussed at last month’s meeting. The City Treasurer said there was $800 left
in the budget for culverts. The Mayor said he was going to talk to someone who
lives in front of the property who had told him he would dig it out for him. The
Mayor said he might buy some concrete and pour a culvert. Ms. Schell asked if
we could get a price from the County to do it right. The Mayor said he would
talk to the County. The Mayor also reported that the roads are supposed to be
done again and that Kerens Street is supposed to be done in thirty days. The
Mayor and Christy Schell discussed information received from the County in
regard to what the County planned concerning the roads.



Page 6 of 6

8. Consent Agenda
The last item was approval of the Minutes and the Treasurer’s Report. Ms. Schell
had a question on the Minutes pertaining to the Public Hearing concerning the
properties that were condemned. The City Secretary responded that registered
certified packages had been sent to all parties concerned. Ms. Schell said that we
(city) can’t proceed unless they (concerned parties) have been notified. Ms. Schell
asked about the Roy Brown property and the City Secretary replied that the package
on the Brown property had been returned. Ms. Schell thought there was an address
where he could be located. Ms. Schell repeated that we could not go ahead with
this if they had not been notified and asked about the Jeffrey’s property because
Jeffrey is dead. Mike Shea asked if you (city) put the notices in the paper. The city
secretary replied that the notices had been published and Ms. Schell confirmed this
process. Ms. Schell stated that we needed to be sure this was done right. The city
secretary replied that the actions taken were in accordance with the Local
Government Code and she thought there was a provision in the local government
code that permitted a city to proceed if an owner could not be located. Ms. Schell
said there was an address for Roy Brown on Hwy. 36 in Caddo Mills. The city
secretary responded that she had not located that address.

Mike Shea had a question about page 5 of the Minutes. The Mayor answered his
question.

The Consent Agenda was unanimously approved.

9. Executive Session – None

10. Reconvene Council Meeting – not needed

11. Adjournment
Mike Shea made a Motion to adjourn; Christy Schell seconded the Motion. The
Motion carried.



1

City of Nevada
Council Meeting Minutes

September 7, 2004

Council Members Present: Richard Caldwell, Christy Schell, Wayne
Drummonds, Janey Mobley, Michael Shea, Jeanne Davis

A. Call to Order
Mayor Caldwell called the Meeting to order.

B. New Business
1. The Postmaster of Nevada.

a. Did not show up.
2. Robert Heath is requesting a variance to build a home at 322 Kyle Street;

everyone should have a copy of floor plan, 1425 square feet. Is there any
discussion? Has Wes approved this in general other than just the square
footage? Mayor, no he would have to get the variance first before we
approved the plan. Is the garage in the proper spot? Can it be in the
front of the house? If it’s detached it cannot be and if it’s attached it can
be. (Mayor) What we need to worry about is the square feet. Make a
motion to give him the variance under the condition that the garage fits in
the rest of our zoning plan. Isn’t it supposed to be 1600 square foot? Is
there a reason why it can’t be 1600 square feet? (Mayor) that’s why he is
asking for a variance. The lot size that he has is a quarter of an acre.
(Christy) can he get septic on a quarter of an acre? State law says you
can’t, it’s a state law not us. Do you know for sure if it’s less than a half-
acre? No, not sure. We can give you Wes’s phone number and let you
talk to him.

3. Copier –(Lanier) Janey called and gentleman came out and looked at it
and has given us a quote on what it’s going to take to fix it and the
comments he made about it. I do believe we have 3 toner cartridges. A
drum usually last up to 80,000 copies and he couldn’t tell how many this
drum had on it. If we had to replace anything on the copier it maybe the
drum and the estimated cost would be $450.00 “if” we had to replace it.
Which we may not have to before the years up. So the worst-case
scenario, $676.00 for a great copier, Motion made by Wayne
Drummonds to get copier fixed, Ms. Schell second, all in favor, I, motion
carried.

4. Sales tax election coming up, where do we stand on that Janey? In the
works.

C. Speakers:
1. Chuck Trivano would you like to address the council? Address that are on

record on 911 is the one that we put down. If something happens on the



2

road we pick the nearest mailbox. (Mayor) as long as we can get
confirmation from the County on that. If you have any questions you can
call me (Chuck) if you want to know exactly where it was call me.

2. Mr. Barnes, we’ve had some complaints about the trash service. We’ve
had 2 complaints; on 3 occasions we have left messages on the houses.
2 occasions there were mattresses. 1st and 3rd Saturdays of the month.

D. Budget –
Everybody’s got a copy of the proposed budget. I think Wayne had
several things on it he had marked up and talked about. Is there any
discussion on the budget at this time?

1. Page 1 permit fee, it shows that we admit 7 new homes at $600.00.
(Janey) 7 new homes as you see starting in June, I don’t know when
Renfrow is going to start, there are no new streets in yet it could be next
summer, so I start with 1 home in June, 2 homes in July, August and
September. I guess my specific question is it on page 4 it shows that
plant work is 9 homes, so they have more going out than coming in?
(Janey) we don’t get permit money on grant homes, we have to pay less,
that is part of our deal. (Mayor) our matching funds for the grants.
(Christy) I did talk with Wes today, he said he would be happy to do it for
the price we agreed. What council do we use? TML. Did we talk to the
audit firm in case nobodys happy with the audit company? Did they
explain to you why they want to depreciate fixed assests? (Janey) it’s
going to be required. For depreciation of fixed assests for non-profit? Yes,
for city, also for new developers like Renfrow and will have to ask him to
give us a cost, what it cost him and they will depreciate those streets for
new developers. (Christy) it is not a state law requirement but that they
are enforcing this year. My reasoning is that we are not righting it off that
so why are we depreciating fixed assets, it doesn’t make any sense, it’s
like apples and oranges. That has to show two different forms. I just
gave you a memo about the conversation I had …… I got the name from
Sue Johnson. Is this something that we have to decide tonight? What
company we want to do our audit? No. (Janey) I have included
$5,000.00 in the budget. (Mayor) we do have to put the money there
whatever we do.

2. Page 4 we have $2,000.00 City Hall maintenance and warehouse
maintenance…last year we only spent $947.00 so why did we double
that? (Janey) that’s air conditioning. I have put $7,000.00 on that last
bottom line for contingencies for all that, emergency fund that is up there
under consolidated. (Mayor) we need to cut $24,000.00 out of this
budget. NetPPA is gone. (Janey) they have not called me back, I called
SPCA last week. (Christy) do we need to do a workshop & go review this
or are we going to do this line by line tonight? (Mayor) no, we’re not
going to do this all tonight.



3

3. (Janey) what we need to do is have a public hearing for the property tax,
for the budget. Do you all want to do the property tax approval tonight
because the county needs to know that, so they can get their ….out.
Unless you intend to raise the rate, which you would have to have the
election, we don’t need it for the budget. (Mayor) can we go ahead and
vote to leave that rollback on the budget? (Christy) do we want the
rollback or can we keep it the same? (Janey) it can’t be higher it can be
the same. It is slightly lower. The rollback rate this year is slightly lower
than what we had last year because we use the rollback rate last year, I
had the calculations that the county goes with, they take all this into
considerations and come up with the actual rate which was 13% and then
they do a rollback rate of 14%. There should be a memo. Infected tax
rate and a rollback rate. We can use either one of those. We can’t go
above the rollback rate. (Mayor) Mr. Shea has made a motion to
accept the rollback rate as taxes, do I hear a second, Nothing
(Christy) I make a motion to keep the rate the same. (Mr. Shea) you
can’t. (Christy) Yes I can. (Mr. Shea) No you can’t because our current
rate is higher than the new rollback rate. (Christy) if you keep it the same
and publish it in the paper, we do it at Fate. (Janey) Well when I talked
to David he said it couldn’t be higher than the rollback rate unless you
have an election. The rollback rate, it doesn’t matter what we are
charging now. The rollback rate changes every year could go u,p could
go down, and you cannot go over that rollback rate for the current year
without calling an election. (Mayor) How much difference are we talking
about? (Janey) .0009. Is that $3.00. Second from Mr. Drummond, all
in favor, Aye, motioned carried.

4. Does City Council need that much legal service, $6,000.00 that’s way too
much? We only spent $3,000.00 last year, right. (Janey) because of the
tax election.

5. What are we going to do for animal control? Nothing? There’s no option.
So everybody’s on their own? Yes.

6. We got charged for street lights. Annual service, increase, goes up
annually, I know with the other service we got a schedule. All Janey had
in her file was what the County said they were going to charge.

7. (Mayor) Do you want to have a work session? We still need to find
$20,000.00 dollars. (Janey) has $7,000.00 that we might not have to use.
We have $3,900.00. Did we cut out the new copy machine now that we
have voted to get the old one fixed? (Janey) put a little bit of money
under equipment and furniture I have $12,000.00. $850.00 bill for the
…..And a bill in October that needs to be paid for $575.00.

8. Comprehensive planning are we going to try to get that paid for in this
budget? (Janey) no, they bill it monthly. So the $25,000.00 should be
able to be rolled back into this budget? (Janey) take all that money out of
CD’s. We have CD money there. (Christy) I know that Dale Morton has



4

an appointment with North Texas to talk about a package sewer plan.
(Janey) is he paying for all of it? (Christy) he should pay for his own fee.
Paul Chang is also coming around looking for land in Nevada.

9. (Dennis) Do we have to pay Shrimp Patty some money? (Christy) yes, for
your tree ordinance. No…..(Janey) it’s for Misc. The bill was for March
through July. Part of it was for when he came out and met with Jeanne
and I and talked about comprehensive plan and development fees and he
wrote us an email afterwards of a step-by-step plan that we need to go
through when we take in new developers. Council got a copy of that. I
don’t see a lot of that being charged out to developers because the only
developer we got that’s got something going on is Paul, he paid
$1,500.00. But I think that if we all agreed that he wasn’t going to get
paid that all that was in the developer’s fee for him to get his money,
which he wasn’t going to charge us nothing to start. (Janey) yea, but we
shouldn’t be asking him questions. (Christy) and that’s my deal this tree
ordinance, did we ever say where this came from. Who decided we
needed a tree ordinance? Was that you? (Jeanne) No. It wasn’t me.
Who? Who told you to go to Trent and get a tree ordinance? Richard
told me a long time ago to work with Trent on this thing and needed it in
place. We had talked in Council before about looking at a tree ordinance,
comprehensive is all these maple trees and whatever trees that were on
this list. But we were going to look at a plan because Rockwall had one
like if they to came in and had to cut down a large section of trees and
they would have to replant some of the trees and we were looking at that.
(Christy) Trent said that that was requested. That you told him you
wanted Westlake’s not Rockwall’s, Westlake’s. (Jeanne) I asked him
would he recommend it? And He recommended Westlake’s. (Christy)
that’s not what he told me. Did he charge us, yes he charged us.
(Mayor) The only thing I ever instructed you to do is far as going on is
getting with Trent to set up the fees so that when a developer comes in
that we get the money up front so that we can pay Trent. That’s the only
thing I wanted taken care of. I really didn’t care anything else about tree
preservation or anything else and I told you that when we started the
agenda that there were 4 things that I wanted on the agenda if he
wanted tree preservation on there that was fine, but I need the important
things on these 4 on there and the tree preservation was not important.

10. (Christy) I have a comment on Paul Renfro’s thing; the council approved
his subdivision without it ever going to an engineer. Did you realize that
when you printed it? (Mayor) no, the engineers got it now. (Christy) yes
he has it now but you (council) have already approved it. It doesn’t make
any difference what he says because it was approved in this council. Did
we approve it? (Christy) Trent is the one that emailed me and said I have
never seen this, it’s out of my hands, and the engineers called him and
said we have it why? We approved it because he agreed to do it septic on



5

one-acre lots and it meets all of our zoning orders. (Christy) we have
drainage and all that for the engineers, they got it now. We sure do have
a subdivision ordinance that says the engineer will sign off on it. (Man)
We have no law that says man can’t come in and build as many houses as
he wants on one acre lots using septic systems.

11. (Mayor) lets get back to the budget. (Christy) well you’re getting a bill
from the engineer. (Man) are these suggestions already in the budget?
(Janey) Partly. I put some money in there for office supplies, etc. not as
much as requested in the memo. (Jeanne) now we can put the
newsletter on the website, but I know from comments that I’ve had, we
are still going to have a lot of people who will want to receive by mail.
(Janey) Notice that I have put under administrative down there I now
have separate ones – for newsletter printing and newsletter associate. To
get postage for 200 letters 4 times a year. (Christy) we could spend the
$500.00 and get a bulk rate? (Jeanne) I didn’t do this and I wish I would
have put in the last newsletter that if they wanted to continue on the
mailing list verses looking at the website to please call.

12.What is the food item under inspections for safety right? (Janey) We
have paid him for inspections at school, he had to do 4 inspections
because there is 4 eating places over there, so that was $350.00, $75.00
for each inspection and then we have Leon’s and Crossroads that he had
has done inspections on and charged $75.00 each so that would be
another $150.00 there. Question is, are we going to bill the school?
Because they had a deal with the State it’s free? Are we going to charge
them? Annually? Every six months? Just bill the businesses. $700.00 for
the school and $300.00 for the other 2 places. Do we bill them after the
fact? Or up front. Up front. They are suppose to have grease traps.
(Mayor) Stacy told him that if they were not cooking mass quantities that
they could get away with not having a grease traps if they were putting it
in a bucket and carrying it out, they would be ok. Take the fees we make
from the bills to pay for the schools. He charges $75.00 and we charge
$150.00. (Christy) can’t you get with the schools to see if they want to
use the state for free? Why pay anybody? (Mayor) Someone from the
school called and said hay, we want to know if ya’ll can do inspections on
our cafeteria’s and I said we don’t do that right now and he said that the
county is charging us too much money so that’s why we set this up to
begin with. I will call them tomorrow, I’m sure they will want to go with
the county for free. (Janey) I’ve got one development/subdivision in
there, their suppose to come up here to start the action, we don’t have
any money up front if any of this is wanting to go along. Until we get the
money they shouldn’t talk to him (Trent). (Janey) According to the
development fee ordinance that the council approved if they want to come
to the City Council to give you an overview that’s $500.00. And then if
they want to go forward with it then it’s for pre-application, so much an



6

acre, I put $1,200.00 in and the $700.00 is the final, it’s like a 3 stage
thing. And then you’ve got your engineering fees, attorney’s fee….. So
far we don’t have anyone coming up here saying here’s my money.
(Christy) it’s in place; Morton can’t do anything without Trent. Does Trent
talk to him? (Christy) he hasn’t. (Mayor) anything else on the budget?
(Christy) are we doing a workshop or public hearing? (Janey) There has
to be a public hearing so many days before the next council meeting, if
there are any changes that you would want to make. Lien on house, on
1138, back school taxes, tabled for next council meeting. (Christy)
motioned to tabled. (Mayor) need to turn budget over to Janey and let
her finish it. (Christy) we need a public hearing date, Tuesday,
September 28th, 2004, 7:00 pm. Anything else on budget?

E. Speaker Justin from Grantworks – can you give us an update on where
we are on that grant? One complete application for all the documents
that owners are required to provide, income verification. Still trying to
collect information, one more phone call. Right now we have 7 active
applications, 1 that we are trying to get documentation. One home owner
that would like to withdraw. We have to contact her to make sure she
understands. I know that the city would like this process to move a little
more quickly. We can’t really take the next step until we get all the
documentation. (Mayor) Basically, your saying, everyone that has
applied, is everybody capable of getting the grant. #1, are we getting 5
houses? We can do 9 reconstructive. (Christy) Are all the houses done at
one time? Not at all the same time. Here is a list a short version of all
who qualify. Copy of legal stuff? Home program. We will move forward
with it if we have 7 and can’t find anymore. Hopefully find a few more
people. (Christy) On these tax receipts, can they come right off the
internet? Have to come from the County tax office. District. Yes, it says
tax receipt on the form. For payment plan. For more applicants, name,
address and phone numbers and Grantworks can do a preliminary on the
phone to see if they might be income requirements and we can come out
and help them fill out their applications. (Mayor) any other questions?

F. Approve Minutes - on the treasurer’s report, is there any questions?
1. (Christy) yes, on the minutes August 3, 2004, the Public Hearing to

amend the zoning ordinance was never published in the paper, it is void.
Royse City Herald Banner said it was never published. We can’t do it.
Which makes item C on page 3 of 6 invalid because it was not published.
We need an affidavit or it’s not valid.

2. On page 6 of 6 on Consent Agenda was this all done correctly? The City
Secretary replied that the notices had been published and that Christy
Schell had confirmed it. I don’t know why I would confirm it when I was
arguing with it to start with, it didn’t happen. It was not published. It
says that Mike Shea asked if you (city) put the notices in the paper. The
city secretary replied that the notices had been published and Ms. Schell



7

confirmed it, no, because I was arguing it the whole time saying we
didn’t do it right, the Royse City Hearld Banner says it didn’t happen. We
were going to condemn people’s houses without putting it in the paper?
All that is invalid. (Jeanne) it was published. Royse City Hearld Banner
says no. (Mayor) we should have an affidavit. (Mayor) we can approve
the minutes but we have to go back and redo everything we’ve done.
Ms. Schell confirmed this is the process. (Christy Schell) ok, I’m good
with that.

3. Question, The Consent Agenda was unanimously approved, no one
motioned, no one second, just approved? (Mayor) we need to find out
who motioned and who second?

4. (CS) on the August 16th minutes, We didn’t list who was here, everybody
but Dennis was here. (CS) on page 4 of 4 it says the motion was
seconded by the mayor, I don’t think so. (Mayor) do I hear a motion to
the corrections of the minutes, Ms. Schell motion to the corrections
to the minutes, Mr. Drummonds second, all in favor, is that the
Treasurer’s report to? Yes. Motioned carried.

G. Motion to adjourn, Mr. Shea motion to adjourn, Mr. Drummonds
second, all in favor, Aye, meeting adjourned.

Mayor Richard Caldwell City Secretary
_____________________________ ___________________________


